) A
A

FN

CITYO OVATO
CALIFORNIA

PLANNING COMMISSION
Special Meeting Minutes

Monday, November 18, 2024 - 7:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Commission Present: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Havel, Engdahl,
Heath, and Tiernan

Commission Absent: None

Staff Present: Assistant City Attorney Mackenzie Anderson (by Zoom), Deputy
Community Development Director Steve Marshall, Senior Planner Brett Walker, and
Senior Planner Vivek Damodaran

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and second by
Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 via roll call to approve the final
agenda of the Commission’s meeting of November 18, 2024.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, Heath, and Tiernan
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

C. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE
D. CONSENT ITEMS
D.1. Approve Meeting Minutes of August 12, 2024

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and second by
Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 via roll call to approve the
meeting minutes of August 12, 2024.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, Heath, and Tiernan
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

Page | 1 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

ABSENT: None
E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS - NONE
F. PUBLIC HEARINGS
F.1. THE LODGE ON NOVATO CREEK
USE PERMIT, DESIGN REVIEW, & DENSITY BONUS (P2023-080)
1787 GRANT AVENUE; APNs 141-201-12 AND 141-201-48
PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTIONS: (1) FINDING
THE LODGE ON NOVATO CREEK TO BE EXEMPT FROM ADDITIONAL CALIFORNIA
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) REVIEW PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES
SECTION 15183; AND (2) APPROVING A USE PERMIT, DESIGN REVIEW, AND DENSITY
BONUS TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A RESIDENTIAL CARE
FACILITY FOR THE ELDERLY, INCLUDING 55 ASSISTED LIVING UNITS AND A 31-BED
MEMORY CARE FACILITY AT 1787 GRANT AVE, APNS 141-201-12 AND 141-201-48
Senior Planner Walker presented the staff report.
Commissioner Tiernan inquired about the proximity of the proposed building’s main entry to
nearby residential dwellings. He also asked for a clarification about the differences between
assisted living as residential use compared to the memory care component representing a
commercial use.
Senior Planner Walker responded.

Steve Ring, representing Fulcrum Development (project applicant), presented a slide deck
describing the project.

Commissioner Tiernan asked if the applicant had considered locating the main entrance to
the facility on the other side of the building near Novato Creek.

Mr. Ring confirmed an entry on the other side of the building was considered. However, there
were many constraints (flood control easement, emergency access requirements, etc.) that
made it infeasible to locate the main entry on that side of the building.

Commissioner Tiernan asked if there will be events and activities near at the proposed entry.
Mr. Ring explained that assisted care facilities receive minimal visitors.

Commissioner Tiernan stated the main entry belongs on the other side of the building.

Chair Havel opened the public hearing.

No members of the public wished to address the Commission regarding the project.

Chair Havel closed the public hearing.

Page | 2 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Commissioner Dawson supported the project as proposed, noting it was a good use of the
project site. He commented that relocating the main entry would likely require moving the
building closer to the adjacent residences.

Commissioner Derby commented the project was a perfect use of the site.

Commissioner Tiernan stated he was fine with the proposed use and density bonus request,
but thought the project would be better with the main entry on the creek side of the building.

Commissioner Heath stated the project looks nice and recognized the need for senior
assisted living facilities based on the demographic data shared by Mr. Ring.

Commissioner Engdahl indicated he supported for the project.

Commissioner Crockett expressed support for the project and its potential contribution to
activity on Grant Avenue. He encouraged the applicant and staff to work together to enhance
landscaping within the public right-of-way fronting Grant Avenue.

Chair Havel recognized the project site has challenging constraints and felt the applicant did
a good job of balancing the design of the project with those constraints. He concurred with
the applicant’s perspective regarding the minimal amount of traffic expected to be generated
by the project.

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Derby and seconded by
Commissioner Heath, the Planning Commission voted 6-1 via roll call to adopt the draft
CEQA resolution for The Lodge on Novato Creek.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Heath
NOES: Commissioner Tiernan

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Dawson and seconded by
Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 6-1 via roll call to adopt the draft
resolution approving the use permit, design review, and density bonus for The Lodge on
Novato Creek.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Heath
NOES: Commissioner Tiernan

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

F.2. AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER XIX OF THE NOVATO MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED
TO THE REGULATION OF ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND JUNIOR
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND FINDING THE AMENDMENTS TO BE
EXEMPT FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT (CEQA) PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15282(h)
AND PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21080.17

Page | 3 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a resolution recommending the City Council:

A. Amend Novato Municipal Code Section 19.34.030 (Accessory Dwelling Units) to: 1)
incorporate recent revisions to State law addressing accessory dwelling units (“ADU”
and “ADUSs”; 2) modify permitting requirements for certain types of ADUs; and, 3)
modify existing and add new text to clarify various provisions applicable to ADUs;

B. Amend Novato Municipal Code Section 19.34.032 (Junior Accessor Dwelling Units) to
incorporate recent revisions to State law addressing junior accessory dwelling units
(“JADU” and “JADUSs”); and

C. Find the referenced amendments to be exempt from the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(h) and Public
Resources Code Section 21080.17

Senior Planner Damodaran presented the staff report.

Commissioner Derby inquired about how Novato’s ADU ordinance compared to other local
Marin County jurisdiction ADU ordinances.

Deputy Director Marshall responded that staff did not perform a direct comparison of ADU
ordinances for this effort. However, he recalled other ordinances are all very similar given
State law, but there is some variation in ADU size limits and permitting processes.

Commissioner Derby asked staff to clarify whether a property with an ADU, JADU and
primary dwelling would be considered as multi-family, subject to multi-family home
inspections.

Deputy Director Marshall clarified that under State law, this configuration would be considered
multi-family. He elaborated that locally the City has different variations of multi-family (e.g.,
attached townhomes, apartments, etc.) and that the City does have an multifamily dwelling
inspection program that applies to properties containing three or more units without a property
owner living on-site; as such, this program would not apply to a property where a JADU is
included as a multi-family unit, because JADUs require owner-occupancy of a primary
dwelling unit or the JADU.

Commissioner Derby asked staff to clarify if there were exceptions to classifying a property
as multi-family and whether the multi-family inspection program is a State law.

Deputy Director Marshall clarified that the multi-family inspection program is a local program
that is independent of the ADU/JADU ordinances and that it is at the discretion of City Council
to make any changes to the multi-family inspection program because that program is not
contained within the Zoning Ordinance. He noted the Housing Element directs the City to
continue its multi-family inspection program.

Commissioner Tiernan asked staff to provide additional information about the comment letter
from CalHDF.

Page | 4 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Deputy Director Marshall responded that CalHDF’s comment letter took issue with the City’s
deed restriction requirement for ADUs and he explained that specifics of the current deed
restriction requirement for ADUs.

Commissioner Tiernan requested clarification on what exceptions are made for the separate
sale of ADUs as noted in the deed restriction requirement for ADUs.

Deputy Director Marshall clarified that State law has allowances for certain qualified non-
profit organizations to sell ADUs.

Commissioner Tiernan requested clarification on the new requirement pertaining to
unpermitted ADUs.

Deputy Director Marshall explained that State law compels a local agency to only review
unpermitted ADUs for compliance with California Building Code standards addressing
habitable structures.

Commissioner Tiernan observed that State law now allows for certain ADUs that are exempt
from local ordinance standards, for example the City’s wetlands requirement. He asked staff
if there have been any occurrences where an applicant proposes an ADU in conflict with
these types of local ordinances.

Deputy Director Marshall stated the City has not had any specific instances where this has
occurred. He further explained that this class of ADUs is intended to remove a local agency’s
ability to enforce a buffer or setback in these instances and that State and other
environmental regulations would still apply.

Commissioner Tiernan asked staff to clarify when an ADU would be allowed to be located
within a front yard setback.

Deputy Director Marshall explained that ADUs under the classification of Limited Standard
ADUs may encroach into a front yard setback and standard local ADUs may also encroach
into a front yard setback if an ADU of 800 sq. ft. cannot conform to other standards.

Commissioner Tiernan observed that this would be a problem and possibly be a
neighborhood destroyer. He then asked staff to provide clarification on what Limited Standard
ADUs were.

Senior Planner Damodaran explained that Limited Standard ADUs are ADU types listed
under California Government Code Section 66323 with prescribed development standards
and include detached single-family ADUs, conversion single-family ADUs, detached multi-
family ADUs and conversion multi-family ADUs.

Commissioner Tiernan asked if a trailer parked on someone’s property would be considered
an ADU.

Deputy Director Marshall clarified a parked trailer would not be considered an ADU; it would
be necessary to meet the Building Code standards of a fixed structure.

Page | 5 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Commissioner Engdahl asked about the amnesty requirement and how many unpermitted
ADUs the City anticipates coming forward.

Deputy Director Marshall stated he doesn’t anticipate very many coming forward because
State law pertaining to ADUs has become increasingly more permissive since 2017 and has
made it easier to permit ADUs.

Chair Havel opened the public hearing.
There were no members of the public present.
Chair Havel closed the public hearing.

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Havel and seconded by
Commissioner Tiernan, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 via roll call to adopt the
revised draft resolution presented at the hearing by staff, including amendments clarifying
that certain standards are inapplicable to the accessory dwelling unit types addressed in
Novato Municipal Code Section 19.34.030 N.2. (Limited Standards Accessory Dwelling
Units), recommending the City Council approve the proposed amendments to the ADU
and JADU provisions of the Novato Municipal Code and find said amendments to be
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, Heath, and Tiernan
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GENERAL BUSINESS - None

COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS

Deputy Director Marshall noted the Commission’s upcoming meetings in December.

ADJOURNMENT

The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:30 PM.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning
Commission meeting of December 16, 2024.

[Steve Marshall/

Steve Marshall, Deputy Community Development Director

Page | 6 Phone No. (415) 899-8900

novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

	PLANNING COMMISSION
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA
	C. PUBLIC COMMENT – NONE
	PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTIONS: (1) FINDING THE LODGE ON NOVATO CREEK TO BE EXEMPT FROM ADDITIONAL CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) REVIEW PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15183; AND (2) APPROVING A USE PERMIT, D...
	H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS
	I. ADJOURNMENT

